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Prescribed by GSA

FAR (48 CFR) 53.243���CENTER OPERATIONS SUPPORT SERVICES 

RFP 8-P-6-AB-30975

Amendment 3



SUBMITTED QUESTIONS WITH OFFICIAL ANSWERS



1.	 Reference Paragraph F.3, page F-2, Paragraph L.22.D.5, page L-24, Clause F.3, PHASE-IN AND PHASE-OUT, and Solicitation Provision L.22, PROPOSAL PREPARATION INSTRUCTIONS, provide for Contractor phase-in and phase-out; however, the SOW and Schedule do not appear to address phase-in/phase-out. Where is phase-in/phase-out addressed in the SOW and Schedule?  Suggest MSFC include a description of phase-in/phase-out requirements and identify CLINs for pricing these activities in the Schedule.



Phase-In and Phase-Out will be conducted in accordance with FAR 52.237-3, Continuity of Services.  Phase-In price is now included as CLIN 0004.0000 in the “Schedule of Prices for Lump Sum Work” as Schedule B Price Sheet “Lump Sum Work” and is attached to this modification as a separate Internet file. ��

2.	Clause F.3.A text states “10 month base period” - this contradicts F.4.A. which states a 12-month base period of performance.  In addition it is not clear where phase-in costs should be reflected in Schedule B.  Please clarify the base contract period. 



Clause F.3 is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following.  NOTE:  Clause F.3.A no longer states “10-month base period” and therefore no longer contridicts Clause F.4.A which correctly states a 12-month base period of performance.



     “Clause F.3  PHASE-IN AND PHASE-OUT



Contractor Phase-In.  Phase-In activities shall be accomplished in accordance with FAR 52.237-3, Continuity of Services.



If Phase-In activities are required, the first year period of performance will be calculated to include lump sum price for base contract period (CLIN 0001), less first two months of lump sum price for base contract period (two tweleths of CLIN 0001), plus Phase-In price (CLIN 0004).



Contractor Phase-Out.  Phase-out activities shall be accomplished in accordance with FAR 52.237-3, Continuity of Services.



Upon Completion of Phase-Out, at the Government’s option, the Contractor will be required to furnish to the Government, at no higher than 
vendors 
invoice price, all remaining spare parts that were Contractor procured.



(End of Clause)”��

3.	Reference Section E clause E.10D.  The application of the $10,000 deduction per event seems excessive since this contractor is assuming responsibility for systems which in many cases have been in service for a number of years and have been maintained by another contractor who may or may not have performed adequately.  This is a severe penalty and seems to be applied in excess in attachment J-C1.8.  As an example, by definition, system #16, exterior lighting systems, on a building having a NASA wide effect has an allowed total availability loss of 0 and partial loss of 1.  In other words, for this building,  if 2 light bulbs burned out (separately) in the lot in a month the contractor could face a $10,000 deduction.  There are also cases where the building (such as Fac. No. 4466 or 4464) could have a complete loss of power, even a number of times during the month, and have no $10,000 deduction but have two maintenance alarms and have a deduction of $10,000.



The example given is inaccurate regarding system availability since burned out light bulbs do not constitute a system loss of availability but rather a partial availability loss.  However, Attachment J-C1.8, System Availability Requirements, is deleted in it entirety and is attached to this modification as a separate Internet file.  Pages J-C1.8-3 through J-C1.8-8 have been revised and have been shaded and bolded to show where each revision has occurred.��

4.	Reference Clause H.27., Applicability of Section Clauses to Subcontracts, is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:



              “H.27  APPLICABILITY OF SECTION CLAUSES TO SUBCONTRACTS



In the event the Contractor enters into subcontract(s) for performance of any of the services required under the Statement of Work of this contract, the Contractor hereby agrees that, in addition to all other requirements, the intent and purpose of the following contract clauses will be incorporated in any such subcontract(s).



						Title



		E.2	Inspection of Construction

		F.7	Option to Extend the Term of the Contract

		G.2	Contractor Employee Badging and Employment

			Termination Clearance

		G.4	List of Available Installation-Owned Property and Services

		H.1	Minimum Insurance Coverage

		H.3	Asbestos Material

		
H.4	Acquisition of Information Technology and Year 2000 Compliance


		H.5	Observance of Legal Holidays

		H.9	Subcontracting

		H.16	Environmental Protection

		H.24	Labor Standards Requirements



(End of clause)”��

5.	Please clarify the use of coefficient factors.  Is it the intent of the Government to require the bidder to globally apply a single factor to labor and material or would the use of a labor factor and a material factor work as RS Means utilizes?



A single factor for each work classification (such as construction during core hours) and year (such as base year), as proposed by the Contractor in the Schedule of Prices for Coefficients, shall be applied globally to the total of the bare costs.  Since bare costs include material, labor, and equipment, the Contractor should review the historical information to assess the type of work performed.��

6.	Reference Section B5.B - Please clarify the statement that the coefficient factor shall be net increase or decrease to the unit bare costs listed in RS Means Facilities Cost Data publications referred to as Means unit bare costs determined using the FLRs or Subcontracted Services.  Bare costs means the amount agreed to or determined in accordance with the provisions of Section C1, before the application of the applicable coefficient factor.  Using this concept would exclude the Davis Bacon and Service Contract Act labor rates.  Which labor rates are to be utilized?  The schedule of prices requires FLRs by position subject to Davis Bacon for construction and SCA for all other work.



An example may best clarify this statement.  Most work will consist of a combination of the various pricing mechanisms detailed in Section C1.6.  Assume a FWR or DO was issued containing a set of drawings that detailed upgrading of a conference room, and included new receptacles, new ceiling, lighting, and flooring, modifying an existing conference table, and disposing of some hazardous gizmos.  The new receptacles would be priced as prepriced with the unit amount taken from the "Schedule of Prices for Prepriced Work" The first subtotal in this example would be the number of receptacles multiplied by the prepriced amount for new receptacles.  (No coefficient factor applies to prepriced items).  Next, for work associated with the ceiling, lighting, and flooring, the unit bare costs taken from Means or the supplemental Means are multiplied by the number of units determined by drawing takeoffs, subtotaled, and then multiplied by the applicable coefficient factor (such as the one for construction during core hours, base year).  Next, assuming the specialty work associated with modifying the conference table is not contained within the Means publications, labor and material for modifying the conference would be proposed by the Contractor using FLRs and competitive quotes for materials.  The bare cost for labor for modifying the conference table would be obtained by multiplying the Fixed Labor Rate proposed by the Contractor under the "Schedule of Prices for Fixed Labor Rates" for a carpenter by the number of hours proposed by the Contractor, and then adding any allowable material costs.  (The FLR's proposed by the Contractor in the Schedule of Prices for Fixed Labor Rates must equal or exceed the Davis Bacon Act rates for this construction example).  The bare costs for modifying the conference table are then treated as non-Means and the coefficient for non-Means from the Schedule of Coefficients is applied to the work for modifying the conference table.  Next, assume the last item of disposing of the hazardous gizmos is only priceable through a specialty hazardous disposal contractor, who assesses the gizmos and provides the contractor a quote for disposal.  This quote for disposal is multiplied by the Coefficient for Subcontracted Services taken from the "Schedule of Prices for Coefficients".  Finally, the 4 subtotals (one prepriced, one for Means items, one for non-Means items, and one for subcontracted services) are totaled and become the amount proposed by the Contractor for the requested FWR or DO.��

7.	Please clarify material cost limit on PM work.  C1.5Da states repair work limit is the Trouble Call Limit while C1.5E states $500 material limit for repair work done by operations personnel.  



Refer to C1.5.D.a, Definition and Repair Limitation, for those activities that are considered PM work.  There is no material cost limit associated with performing PM.  Incidental repairs that are discovered during PM performance have the same limit as TC work.  C.1.5.E, Operations, which is watch standing or attendance type work, has a $500 Contractor repair work liability for Contractor provided material per system, per occurrence.��

8.	With reference to C.1.5.Da; does the $500 limit for material apply to Trouble Calls against the total $2,000 Trouble Call Limit.



The $500 limit applies to C1.5.E, Operations.  C1.5.D.a addresses preventive maintenance.  C4.2.A, Definition and Limitation, states that TCs do not exceed $2000 total material and labor cost.  It does not specify a material cost limit.��

Attachment J-C1.22 provides a listing of Service Requests.  Please clarify definition of service request and there relation to Trouble Calls.



Refer to C1.6.A, General, for information concerning service requests.  Service requests are for work outside of maintaining and operating existing collateral equipment and facilities.  TCs are for work on collateral equipment and facilities that has a total cost of  $2000 or less.��

10.	The SOW elements discuss preventive maintenance activity that is required.  Clarify intent of clause “Contractor Shall Maintain and Repair” that appears in ClIN 13.  Specific examples include C.13.5.C Boiler PM & Repair, C.13.5.G Chiller PM and Repair, C13.5.J Cooling Tower PM and Repair.   Will repair work be performed in accordance with Trouble Call and/or the IDIQ effort?



The words “and repair” are removed as follows.  Sections C13.5.C, C13.5.G., and C13.5.J., are deleted in their entirety and replaced with the following:



          “C.  Contract Element (CLIN - 00X1.1301) Boiler PM.  The Contractor shall perform PM on the boilers listed in Attachments J-C1.16 and J-C1.18, Section J, and in accordance with Contract Element (CLIN 00X1.1201) Steam Generation, and Paragraph C13.8, Detailed Specifications.  Annual certifications are required and shall be obtained by the Contractor for boilers listed in Attachment C1.16, Section J.  The annual certification consists of (1)  Type A - Internal and External, (2) Type B - Internal and External with hydrostatic test, and Type C - External under steam.  All PM activities shall be accomplished in compliance with the Contractor’s PM plan.”



          “G.  Contract Element (CLIN - 00X1.1305) Chiller PM.  The Contractor shall perform PM on the reciprocating A/C plants included in Attachments J-C1.16 and J-C1.18, Section J.  All PM activities shall be accomplished in compliance with the Contractor’s PM plan.”



           “J.  Contract Element (CLIN - 00X1.1308) Cooling Tower PM.  The Contractor shall perform PM on the cooling towers listed in Attachments J-C1.16 and J-C1.18, Section J.  All PM activities shall be accomplished in compliance with the Contractor’s PM plan.”



In addition, the title for CLIN 000X.1301 in Section B “Schedule of Prices for Lump Sum Work” is revised to be “Boiler PM”.��

11.	How does the Government intend to apply equitable adjustments to the contract when actual square footage of buildings provided in the RFP varies plus or minus 1 percent?  Are there any moth balled facilities that make up the square footage?  If so, what are?



Equitable adjustment for a gross square footage change greater or less than 1% will be based on how that change affects the lump sum work in the area that is changed.  For example, if the square footage decreased more than 1%, the Government and Contractor would agree on the amount of Lump Sum work that also decreased.  The square footage provided in F.2 Variation in Quantity, does not include mothballed facilities.��

12.	Work generated through the IDIQ Process - Does the contractor have the right to accept and/or refuse work?




Refer to I.5
,
 
Order Limitations, 
and B.2.B. General 
for work the Contractor may refuse.��

13.	Is the contractor allowed to share common resources between Lump Sum and IDIQ work?



The Contractor is allowed to share resources for Lump Sum and IDIQ work.��

14.	Will MAXIMO Enterprise software and license be provided by NASA?  If yes, how many seats will be made available to the contractor?



NASA will provide MAXIMO license.  The license is for 50 concurrent users.  This may be a combination of Contractor and Government personnel.��

15.	Will Oracle relational data base software and license, client and server, be provided by the government or should the contractor price this requirement?



Oracle data base software and license, client and server for MAXIMO will be provided by the Government.��

16.	Will Quest software and license be provided by the Government or should the contractor price this requirement?



Quest software and license will be provided by the Government.��

17.	Will one MAXIMO Developers Kit software application be provided by the Government or should the contractor price this requirement?



Any software applications necessary to operate MAXIMO will be provided by the Government.��

18.	Will the Government provide MAXIMO Enterprise, version 4, at contract start or will it be an earlier version?



The Government will provide MAXIMO Enterprise version 3 at the start of the contract and will change to version 4 at a later date.��

19.	Please define the MAXIMO suite.  What modules will be included?



The Government will provide the MAXIMO Enterprise Base System.��

20.	Will SRQ3 Workbench software and license for client and server be provided by the Government?



SRQ3 Workbench  software and license will be provided by the Government.��

21.	Will the Government provide on-site training to support MAXIMO, Oracle, SRQ3 program applications?



The Government will not provide the Contractor any on-site training.��

22.	There is no CLIN associated with overall program management and related tasks (see SOW C1 General Requirements) and, by instruction, the costs associated therewith are to be included as part of the unit prices for each applicable FFP item number or as part of the coefficient.  Will NASA incorporate an overall management CLIN in lieu of having the offeror spread the costs over numerous CLINs? 



MSFC will not incorporate an overall management C
LIN.  The Offeror is to
 include
 all indirect costs 
Lump Sum and IDIQ 
Coefficients
. 
���23.The RFP states that the Contractor is to provide materials for such things as the Continuous Facility Condition Assessment, Energy Audits, Outages, etc.  In order to properly accomplish these activities, a significant amount of test equipment will be required.  Currently, this type of equipment is furnished by the government and was purchased specifically for some of these activities.  Will the contractor now be responsible for this equipment?



The Government will only make available to the Contractor, the equipment listed on the general and special purpose equipment listings in Attachment J-C1.4.  Any other equipment deemed necessary for Contractor use under this contract shall be provided by the Contractor.  General Purpose Equipment will not be “Furnished” to the awardee but will be “Made Available For Use,”  therefore standard FAR 52.245-2 clause has not been incorporated but Clause G.3 Government Property Available for Use Under This Contract, has been added.  Also the Government intends to use the equipment listed in Attachment J-C1.4 from time to time to perform independent inspections.  The Government will not delay any planned Contractor work by its use of this equipment.��

24.	What is the IDIQ work equivalent for the past three years in any measurement available such as hours, material dollars, number of work orders?



The current contract is cost plus, therefore, equivalent IDIQ work information is not available.��

25.	Who provides data base conversion of the existing Data General, “Mapper” maintenance and workload history into the new planned MAXIMO applications?



Migrating the data from the MAPPER data base to the MAXIMO data base will be the Government’s responsibility.��

26.	There is no clause that would indemnify the new contractor for environmental damage that might have been caused by prior contractors and/or Government actions; will this be provided  upon award of contract?




No
��

27.	Reference Section C1.6D3 Cost Element for Subcontracted Services - Is subcontract services a definition issue or is it a capability issue?  Is the Government requiring the bidder to subcontract these items that cannot be classified as Pre-Priced, UPB, or priceable for FLR work.



Subcontract services is a capabilities issue.  It's included in the hierarchy after pre-priced, UPB, and FLR's as a final means to acquire unique services unable to be priced in any other manner.  The RFP establishes the pricing mechanisms and hierarchy.  The manner in which the Contractor performs the work, either by in-house or by subcontract, is the Contractor's choice.  ��

28.	L-19-3 (Quality Control Subfactor) calls for the offeror to clearly demonstrate an understanding of the principles involved with a performance based SOW as it relates to.., Government’s Quality Assurance Plan,…  Where is the Government’s QA Plan?




L
.19-3 is requiring information from the proposer that demonstrates the Contractor understa
nds the PRS system so they will not exceed the MADR.
��

29.	There is no detailed description of the requirements, format, and content for the quality plan.  Is contractor format acceptable for our Quality Plan?



Contractor format is acceptable.��

30.	Section L.22.C.2 requires the SF 1448 to include all FFP and IDIQ effort to be itemized.  Describe the manner in which the IDIQ effort is to be represented in terms of cost on the SF 1448.



Reference L.22.C.2. is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:



     “2.   Offerors shall complete a SF 1448 for FFP Lump Sum Work.  A blank form is included in Section J, Attachment J-L1, Exhibit 1, and local reproduction is authorized.  A SF 1448 is required for each of the following exhibits:  Base Period, including phase-in, and each of the four option periods.”��

31.	Will the Government provide Burning and Confined Space Entry Permits?



Reference C3.2.A.2 is revised to add new paragraph R.



     “r.  The plan should address, 1) the Contractor’s issuance of required Burning and Confined Space Entry Permits, and 2) coordination with the Government Construction Office for obtaining digging permits.”��

32.	The Government’s PM program for electrical equipment does not seem to be as thorough as the PM program for mechanical equipment.  Should the Contractor anticipate expanding the electrical PM?



The PM program data provided is strictly for the proposers information.  The proposer is responsible for developing an adequate PM program to assure the maximum effectiveness and efficiency of all MSFC collateral equipment (reference C1.5.D.).  If the proposer considers the current PM program inadequate, they are encouraged to make adjustments as part of their proposed PM program.��

33.	Solicitation says “Government will not provide “General Purpose Vehicles”.  Will the Government provide maintenance to repair and/or maintain the general and special purpose equipment which the Contractor will provide?



The Government will not provide maintenance or repair for any General Purpose Equipment.  


M
obil equipment and computer equipment
 
is the only equipment that 
will be maintained
 and repaired by the Government.  
All other Special Purpose Equipment will be maintained and repaired by the Contractor (reference C1.7.1.1. and C1.7.1.2.).��

34.	Davis Bacon has no wage determination for either asbestos or lead abatement workers.  What pay scale will these positions be identified with?



Awardee will be required to conform those positions under Davis Bacon.  The incumbent Contractor has currently conformed these positions 
through the Department of Labor 
at the following rates:  



		Base 	Fringe Benifits



		Asbestos Abatement	$10.91	        $1.94

		Lead Abatement	$10.91	        $1.94

��

35.	The RFP requires 22% to be subcontracted to SDB, SBs, and Women-Owned Companies based on various percentages.  If the Contractor uses a Women-Owned Small Minority Business for 17% of the effort, does this meet the 5% requirement for Women-Owned and the 10% SDB requirement.



Reference L.20, Participation By Small, Small Disadvantaged, And Women-Owned Small Business Concerns.  The Government’s 22% Small, 10% Small Disadvantaged, and 5% Women-Owned Small Business participation goals allow for contract compliance when anywhere from 22% to 5% of the effort is placed under the Woman-Owned Small Business category.��

36.	What do you mean by “Low Cost Planning”?



The Government desires the best quality services for the lowest price.   The Contractor should practice innovation, cost effectiveness, and planning techniques in an effort to both control and reduce costs.  ��

37.	Does the tables for costing i.e., Lump Sum Page 1,2,3 etc., take precedence over the written text description of the task.




R
efer to 
52.215-3
3
, 
Order of Prece
dence Clause incorporated by reference
.
 
��

38.	Reference 1100 series CLINs, Sliding and Roll Up Door Plan.  What is the Government’s expectation on PM for Sliding and Roll Up doors?  C11.5B says do PM in accordance with C11.8E.  C11.8E does not address these doors.  C11.8F does.  It says to do PM per J-C1.18.  J-C1.18 does not show a list on PM procedures for sliding or roll up doors.



Current PM information is available in Attachment J-C1.18.  The first sentence of C11.5.B is revised to state, “The Contractor shall perform PM for the roll doors listed in Attachment J-C11.1, section J, and in accordance with Paragraph C11.8.F.”��

39.	Do the costs for the trouble calls include bin stock or track stock costs also?



Trouble call costs include all material costs.  Refer to Section C2 for the definition of trouble call.��

40.	MI - Yard/Miscellaneous Equipment.  There appears to be new, used, and unserviceable equipment in the yard.  1)Does the Contractor have to maintain this equipment? 2)  Is there a database that describes this equipment’s condition?  3)  Only a few items of test equipment used in PT& I were shown.  Where is the rest housed? 4)  Are there permanently mounted sensors used in the RCM program?



Refer to Amendment 2, question 32.  In addition, refer to C1.7, Available Government Property, Material, and Services, for maintenance of general and special purpose equipment.  There is not a database that addresses the equipment condition.  Approximately 50% of the PT&I equipment was available for viewing.  The PT&I equipment was either in use or stored at various buildings across the Center.  Any equipment not reviewed at the Preproposal Conference is in a similar condition to the equipment that was inspected.  All general and special purpose equipment is considered operable.��

41.	Please clarify the relationship between the Contractor and the listed special equipment.  Some of the equipment seems to be essential to proper building operation.  If so, then why is it listed in special equipment?  Is this an accountability drill or is this equipment all required to perform the contract properly.



The 
special purpose equipment is
 not
 essential to proper building operation
 under normal circumstances
.  However, some of this equipment may have to be placed
 in service, from time to time,
 to sustain facility operation or provide redundant support
 
under 
ab
normal circumstances
.
  ��

42.	How will the Government determine the Price Reasonableness for each cost/price component? 




One or more of the techniques 
set forth in 
FAR 15.805-2
 will be used
.���43.
	Are the total char
ges (costs) shown in J-C4.1 all against FY96 work?  Are all of the charges for operations and maintenance (i.e., operations, PM, TCs) or do some of those costs include service requests, FWRs and DO work?  Will any of the FY96 costs migrate to FY97?  In other words, is J-C4.1 an accurate portrayal of FY96 workload?



Attachment J-C4.1 represents an accurate portrayal of the work and associated costs performed in FY96.  Under the current cost-plus award fee BMMS contract, this work was classified as “maintenance.”  Under the planned COSS contract this work would represent all Lump Sum work as well as much of the IDIQ work.  
��

44.	Past Draft RFP included an SOW for Test Area Support.  We have not seen a Test Area Support SOW in this RFP.  Is Test Area Support still part of the SOW?  If so, where is the workload data for it and SOW?



Test area support is not included in this RFP.��

45.	Does the 4.5 Million feet of space include just office space or all floor space under roof?



The square footage of space refers to total space that is under roofs.��

46.	We assume the successful bidder will be responsible and liable for all Environmental Health and safety performance.



Refer to C1.4.F., Safety and Health Requirements and Reports, the Contractor is responsible for complying with all OSHA and NASA requirements.��

47.	Section L specifies a 200 page limitation.  Section L also specifies that job descriptions and the Quality Plan are part of the 200 page limitation.   To adequately provide a responsive proposal, it would be in NASA’s best interest to increase the page count or delete the job descriptions and Quality Plan from the page count.



Position descriptions were excluded from the 200 page limitation in Amendment 2, Question 1.���48.	Reference Roof Inspection and Roof Documentation in C10.  What is the Government Furnished software that shall be used to document roof inspections?  If it is a commercial product, what is the name and version of the program?  If developed by the Government or the incumbent BMMS contractor, what software product was used to create the database?  Recommend that a sample of a representative roof inspection report/document be included in Attachment J of RFP for reference.



Existing software consists of program that was developed by the incumbent contractor.  As stated in C10.5.B, the Government will provide the existing software.  C10.5.B  also describes the data that is in the existing program.  This data is available for all facilities in Attachment J-C10.1  The data will be stored in the existing program until it can be migrated to the CMMS per C10.5.A.2.d.��

49.	Should the fixed labor rate schedule in Section B be only raw labor costs or should they include all direct, indirect, overhead, and profit factors?



See Section C1.6.C.1.c and C1.6.D.2.  FLRs should not include all direct, indirect, overhead, and profit factors.  FLRs will be adjusted by the non-means coefficient factor.��

50.	Reference C11.5.G (CLIN 00X1.1106) Deionized Water Operations.  Fixed Price element does not state hours of performance (i.e. 24 hrs/day); and does not provide data related to quantity of D.I. Water to be produced by period.  (i.e. month, year). Deionized Water Operations - Lump sum item, however the estimated level of effort is not indicated.  For example, does the operation in each building  require an operator/watch stander around the clock? Does the operator take and analyze samples?



The DI water storage tank at Building 4487 has a 1,000 gallon capacity which is adequate for infrequent operation of this system.  The storage tank at Building 4700 is 50,000 gallons.  Its capacity is adequate for a one shift operation but it may be placed on an automatic cycle.  The DI water systems do not require an operator/watch stander around the clock under the current contract.  However, the Contractor is responsible to determine this effort.  The operator does take and analyze their own samples.��

51.	How many Maximo (CMMS) workstations will the Government provide the Contractor?



The Government will provide six MAXIMO workstations to be used in conjunction with UCS and the replacement of MAPPER.  ���52.	FP Section E.7, page E-6.   For each event where the Contractor is found to be inaccurate in the Contractor's self-evaluation, a unilateral deduction of $500 will be deducted from the Contractor's total monthly invoice after deductions identified at Performance Evaluation Meeting.  1)  Will the Government explain what an "event" consists of?  2)  Will the Government explain what "inaccurate" means?



Event is meant to be the number of times the Contractor states incorrect information concerning their performance.  Inaccurate means that the Government has found that the information submitted is incorrect.  ��

53.	Reference RFP C10.5.A.2.d, page C10-2.  Old software files are required to be put into the CMMS Filing system.   a)  How much existing software and survey data is there?,   b)  Is it exactly like what’s in Attachment J-C10.1, Section J?, and c) Will the new data ever have to be put back into the old software or survey data system?



Existing software consists of program that was developed by the incumbent contractor.  As stated in C10.5.B, the Government will provide the existing software.  C10.5.B  also describes the data that is in the existing program.  This data is available for all facilities in Attachment J-C10.1  The data will be stored in the existing program until it can be migrated to the CMMS per C10.5.A.2.d.��

54.	Reference RFP C10.5.B, page C10-2.  It lists Roof Inspections per Attachment J-C10.1, section J which has 196 each in the Roof Inventory.  MSFC total building and structure count is 228.  a)  Is the 196 roofs listed in the Roof Inventory the only structures to inspect and do PM work on?,  b) Does the contractor inspect and do PM work on the 29 buildings on loan from the Army?, and c)  Does the contractor inspect the trailers and Igloo’s for roof leaks?



The roof inventory is subject to change based on the demand for facilities at MSFC.  The Government maintains the roofs on buildings on loan from the Army.  The Government would make roof leak repairs for igloos and trailers but does not normally inspect these facilities.��

55.	Reference RFP C10.7.D, IDIQ Work, page C10-3.  Sign Making discussion lists Special Equipment in Attachment J-C1.4, Section J.  Item ECN is listed in C10.7.D, but it is not found in Attachment J-C1.4, Section J.   Will the contractor have this equipment to operate or is it no longer in service?



All sign making equipment is listed in Attachment J-C1.4.  However, C.10.7.D lists some incorrect ECNs.  Section C10.7.D. is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:



         “D.   Sign Making.  The Contractor shall provide signs to the Government as requested.  Special sign making equipment is included with the Special Purpose Equipment shown in Attachment J-C1.4, Section J.  (Reference 1218769, 1288143, 1444111, 1533283, 1286099, 1286100, 1288143, and 1286101.)”

��

56.	Reference RFP C13.5.R, page C13-3 & Attachment J-C13.1.  CLIN - 001X.1315 Refrigerant Reclamation says this will be performed by the Contractor.  In J-C13.1-1 the anticipated usage for 1997 in lbs. is much higher then the 5 previous years (ie: CFC-11 Average over 5 years is 1680, but anticipated usages for 1997 is 30,000).  Why is the anticipated so much higher?



Attachment J-C13.1, Section J, is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:



� EMBED Word.Picture.6  ���





�



� EMBED Excel.Sheet.5  ���

�

��

57.	In light of policy proscriptions found in FAR 11.502(a) and (b) regarding use and amounts of liquidated damages, will NASA reassess its position regarding non-PRS-driven deductions?



NASA/MSFC has 
re-
reviewed the non-PRS-driven deductions and has found them to be reasonable
, necessary
,
 and fully in accordance with
 
FAR 11.502(a) and (b)
.��

58.	Reference  Section I.4.C Ordering, page I-7 and Section I.5.D Order Limitations, page I-7.  L.4.C states if mailed, a delivery order is considered issued when the Government deposits the order in the mail.  I.5.D states that the contractor shall honor any order exceeding the maximum order limitations in paragraph B, unless that order is returned to the ordering office within 5 days of issuance, in written notice stating the Contractor’s intent not to perform the requested services and the reasons. Upon receiving this notice, the Government may acquire the supplies or services from another source.  a) Is the Contractor obligated to the FWR/DO if a delay in delivery occurs and the contractor receives it after the 5 day limit?  b)  Is the 5 day limit considered calendar days or working days?  c)  If the Government acquires the service or supply of product from another source, will the Contractor be obligated to perform maintenance or repair to said items while warranty is in affect?  and d)  In the case of a trouble call, will the Contractor be compensated in normal fashion for work done on an item which is under warranty by another source?



The Government will not hold
 the Contractor responsible if the 
Government 
has 
caused 
the 
abnormal delay
.  I.5 Order Limitations refer to calendar days in accordance with FAR 2.101, Definitions.  The Contractor shall be responsible for invoking the Government’s warranty rights in accordance with C1.4.L.��

59.	Reference C6.1.B, page C6-1.  It states the Contractor will maintain a current, accurate, and ongoing electronic inventory database.  a)  Is this a MSFC furnished database?  b)  If so, what software is provided by MSFC?



The current database is a locally developed, custom design using the CONDOR database that runs under DOS
 which will be furnished
.  MSFC is pursuing purchase of a commercial off the shelf software package to replace the existing database.��

60.	Reference C15.3, page C15.1.  The Timberline Estimating System will be furnished to the Contractor.  a)  How will this estimating system be furnished?  b)  Will it be on the MSFC provided LAN? and c)  How many users can use it at one time?



The electronic estimating system shall be provided on the MSFC LAN.  MSFC’s site license allows for 15 operators at any one time.���61.	Reference Attachment J-C1.5, Section J.  All the buildings and structures are listed as Class 1, but pages C1-5 and C1-6 lists 5 different types.  What are the different class types listed in Attachment J-C1.5-1 through J-C1.5-6?



Attachment J-C1.5, Section J is deleted in its entirety and is replaced with the attached Internet file, Building Classifications.��

62.	Note FAR 52.249-4, Termination for Convenience of the Government (Services) (Short Form).  Will NASA please review the use of this clause vs. FAR 52.249-2, Termination for Convenience of the Government (Fixed Price)?  The former limits monetary recovery by the contractor in convenience termination situations only to services rendered before termination, thereby precluding recovery of costs such as long-term rentals, leases, severance packages, etc., which may be due.  See FAR 49.502(c), which stipulates that the short-form clause is to be used when:

The Contracting Officer determines that because of the kind of services required, the successful offeror will not incur substantial charges in preparation for and in carrying out the contract, and would, if terminated for convenience of the Government, limit termination settlement charges to services rendered before the date of termination.  Examples of services where this clause may be appropriate are contracts for rental of unreserved parking space, laundry and drycleaning, etc. 



Clause I.1 is revised to delete 52.249-4 Termination for Convenience of the Government (Services) (Short Form) (Apr 1984) and is replaced with “52.249-2 Termination for Convenience of the Government (Fixed Price) (Sep 1996)”.���63.	Reference J-C1.3, page J-C1.3-1.  Building 4705 diagram is included, but 4705 is not shown on page J-C1.3-1.  Is building 4705 furnished to the Contractor?



Building 4705 was inadvertently omitted page J-C1.3-1.  Attachment J-C1.3, page J-C1.3.1-1 is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following to include Building 4705.



����64.	Section B.5.B. COEFFICIENT FACTOR - IDIQ WORK is revised for clarification as follows:



Section B.5.B. COEFFICIENT FACTOR - IDIQ WORK is deleted in its entirety and replaced with  the following:



      “B.  COEFFICIENT FACTOR - IDIQ WORK



The Contractor shall perform any and all Unit Price Book, Fixed Labor Rate, and Subcontracted Services specified in the Statement of Work, on individual FWRs or DOs, against this contract for the bare cost specified, multiplied times an applicable coefficient factor described and explained below.  The coefficient factor shall be "net" (e.g., 1.0) or a percentage "decrease from" (e.g., 0.80) or "increase to" (e.g., 1.20) the unit bare costs listed in the R. S. Means® Facilities Cost Data publications specified in Section C1 and hereinafter referred to as Means or the unit bare costs determined using the FLRs or Subcontracted Services.  As used herein, bare costs means the amount agreed to or determined in accordance with the provisions of Section C1, before the application of the applicable coefficient factor. 



The coefficient factor submitted by the Contractor for the base and each option year in the “Schedule of Prices for Coefficients”, located at the end of this section, shall be applied to the total of the bare costs to establish the price of each FWR or DO.  For Means Unit Price Book (UPB) items, all subfactors listed below shall be utilized.  For non-UPB items, only subfactors 2, 3, and 4 shall be utilized.



The following four (4) subfactors are used to develop the Contractor’s coefficient factor:



Means Adjustment Subfactor:



This subfactor shall reflect the “decrease” or “increase” cost adjustment to Means (e.g. 0.80 or 1.20).    
The Means Adjustment Subfactor should be entered as a multiplier in the “Schedule of Prices for Coefficients”.  For example, if the Contractor proposes that 80% of the Means bare costs adjusted by the City Cost Index more accurately reflects the base prices for work in the Huntsville, AL area, the Contractor should enter 0.80 in the “Schedule of Prices for Coefficients” for the Means Adjustment Subfactor.




Indirect Subfactor:



The Indirect Subfactor includes all costs which would normally be charged as indirect.  Accordingly, the specified price of individual FWRs or DOs will not include costs for any of the following, or any other costs which are normally treated as indirect:  General and Administrative; Overheads; Labor Burdens; Subcontract Administration; Quality Control; Office Management and Equipment; Project Management and Supervision; Proposal Preparation; Price Quotations; Employee payroll Taxes; Insurance; Business Taxes; Memberships; Depreciation of Equipment, Tools, and Office Equipment; Compliance with Tax and Labor Laws; Accounting; Procurement; Personnel Administration; Training/Certifications; Safety and Compliance with Environmental Laws (i.e. Safety Rails, face and clothing protection, etc.); As-built Drawings; Submittals; Permits; Licenses; Bid and Performance Bonds; Insurance; Protection of and/or Moving Government Property; Traffic and Work Site Signs and Barriers; Temporary Utilities; All Waste and Excess Material; Mobilization and Close-out for each FWR/Delivery Order; General Equipment including Ladders, Scaffolding, Wheelbarrows, Small Tools and other Construction Aids; Security; Clean-up including vacuums; Dumpster and Loading Charges; and Bin Materials.



Accordingly, the following items listed in Means shall be included in this subfactor and shall not be priced separately in FWRs or DOs.



Section		Title



010			Overhead

013			Submittals

015			Construction Facilities and Temporary Controls

016 400 406		Concrete Equipment Rental

016 400 420		General Equipment Rental

017			Contract Close-out



In addition to the above listed Means items, the following items shall be included in the Indirect Subfactor and not priced separately in individual FWRs or DOs:



Costs for ladders, rolling scaffolds, scissors lifts, etc., for work up to 15 feet above finished floors

Dumpster and loading charges for FWRs or DOs with a total price of less than $25,000

Costs for signs, traffic cones, barricades, caution tape, safety tape, etc.

Costs for confined entry equipment

Costs for cleanup work including vacuums, filters, etc.

Equipment costs for small, commonly used tools

Subcontractor mark-ups for overhead and profit

Bin materials and supplies listed in Section C1

Asbestos Equipment, such as HEPA vacuums, decontamination units, and respirators.




The Indirect Subfactor should be entered as a multiplier in the “Schedule of Prices for Coefficients”.  For example, if the indirect amount of 20% was proposed by the Contractor to cover all indirect costs, the Contractor should enter 1.20.




3.	Work Conditions Subfactor:



Some or all of the following work conditions apply to most FWRs or DOs issued by the Government at MSFC and therefore shall be included in the Contractor coefficient factor and not priced separately in individual FWRs or Dos.  The Contractor shall include in this subfactor any adjustments necessitated by operating under these conditions:  



Working in occupied areas

Working through/above ceiling grids.

Disruptions and allowances for utility and equipment outages.

Working in phases.

Working in restricted or confined areas

Working in congested space

Disruptions and allowances for tests

Disruptions and allowances for excavation and work restrictions during missions




The Work Condition Subfactor should be entered as a multiplier in the “Schedule of Prices for Coefficients”.  For example, if an amount of 19% was proposed by the Contractor to cover work conditions, the Contractor should enter 1.01.




Profit Subfactor:



This Subfactor represents the percentage of Profit for the IDIQ portion of the Contract.  
The Profit Subfactor should be entered as a multiplier in the “Schedule of Prices for Coefficients”.  For example, if an amount of 5% of the total price was proposed for profit, the Contractor should enter 1.05.




The subfactors and coefficients for Maintenance, Construction, and Subcontracted Work for each contract period are as depicted in the Microsoft Excel Workbook titled “Schedule of Prices for Coefficients”, included at the end of this section.  The resulting Contractor coefficient for Means and Non-Means items is the product of the applicable subfactors.

�

Fixed Labor Rates are considered non-prepriced items, utilizing only subfactors 2, 3, and 4 of the coefficient listed above.  These rates are fixed for the base year and option years as submitted by the Contractor and detailed in the Microsoft Excel Workbook titled “Schedule of Prices for Fixed Labor Rates” at the end of this section.



Subcontracted Services will not utilize the coefficient factor and subfactors detailed above, but will have a separate and unique coefficient specifically for subcontracted work.  This coefficient, submitted by the Contractor, will be fixed for the base year and option years and detailed in the Microsoft Excel Workbook titled “Schedule of Prices for Coefficients” at the end of this section.



(End of clause)”

��

65.	Reference RFP L.22.F.2, page L-24.  Paragraph 2, page L-24 includes subparagraphs a - p that are to be written specifically to the contracts identified in paragraph 1.  Some of the subparagraphs don’t seem to apply to the specific contracts.  For instance, d, k, m, n, o, p seem to apply to the entire Company, not to a specific contract.  a) Will the Government identify the information it specifically wants for each relevant contract the Offeror references, and the specific company experience it wants.  b)  What is the significance of paragraph e since this is a Firm Fixed Price contract?



The Government has identified the information required (in subparagraphs a - p) to make an overall assessment of the offerors past performance and relevant experience.��

66.	Reference C1.6E.4, which states that completion dates for DOs or FWRs will be extended when the contractor cannot work on DOs or FWRs due to USG prohibition.  However, such extensions will be at no cost to the Government.  Will NASA please review this, given that the Government-caused delay may cost the contractor more and is beyond the contractor’s control.



Section C1.6.E.4, second paragraph is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:



       “The Contracting Officer or authorized representative may negotiate a time for completion different from the schedule presented above for FWRs or DOs.  Days for which work on an FWR or DO is scheduled and cannot be performed because of Government prohibition shall not be considered working days.  Interruptions significantly beyond these described in the Work Conditions Subfactor, shall be at no cost to the Government unless the Contractor can provide sufficient justification that the delay 
caused the Contractor to 
incurr
 additional cost beyond the Contractor’s control.”��



67.	Discussion of authorized overtime or limit of overtime is not included in the RFP.  a) Will there be occasions requiring overtime work?  b) If overtime is authorized, will the Government provide the historical data?



All Lump Sum Work shall be accomplished on a fixed price basis and use of overtime is solely at the discretion of the Contractor with no adjustment in price.  For IDIQ work, core and non-core coefficients are required.  Non-core coefficients are intended to cover overtime requirements.��

68.	Reference Section B, Fixed Labor Rates Electronic Spreadsheet.  The UCS Technicians, Hazardous Waste Technician, and Hazardous Waste Disposal Specialist cells in the unit price column are password protected.  Will the Government remove the password protection and replace the Internet file with the revised spreadsheet?



The Contractor is requested to use the password “password” to unprotect workbook and worksheets found to be in error.��

69.	The RFP included Wage Determinations, i.e., one for the Service Contract Act and one for the Davis Bacon Act but it has not incorporated the current applicable Collective Bargaining Agreements.  What minimum wage rates and fringe benefits apply, i.e., RFP provided Wage Determinations or current Collective Bargaining Agreements?  



The actual collective bargaining agreements were placed on the Internet for downloading on April 17, 1997.��

70.	Reference RFP Attachment J-L5, Job Description/Qualification Form (JDQ) requires annual and hourly salary range, and average hourly cost of fringe benefits.  RFP Attachment J-L4, Key Personnel Resume Form requires salary.   Since “cost/price” data is normally excluded from Mission Suitability Volume, should these forms be placed in the cost/price volume?  RFP L.20, page L-11.  Paragraph C requires Large Business to submit a subcontracting plan, while Small Business to not.  Since this is a page limited proposal, the subcontracting plan will impact Large Business proposals.  Will the Government allow the Contractor to submit the required subcontracting plan as not part of the page limitation?



The third paragraph in Provision L.21.A is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:



     “Total page count of Volume I shall not exceed 200 single sided pages (or 100 double sided sheets), including introductory pages and indexes, but excluding title pages, tables of contents, Subcontracting Plan, position descriptions, JDQ Forms, Key Personnel Resume Forms, blank divider pages, and certifications and acknowledgments.”���71.	Reference RFP Section C1.2.B, F.9, L.22.B.3.  Quality Plan versus Quality Control Section of Proposal  RFP Section C1.2.B calls for a Quality Plan (QP) to be submitted with the Technical Proposal and updated annually. Section F.9 Item A lists the Quality Plan as a report.  Section L.22.B.3 provides guidance on what should be addressed in the Quality Control section of the proposal and asks us to discuss the relationship between the PRS, QP, QAP, SEP, organization structure and management process in assuring QC. It also asks for identification of aspects of the QP which may not be applicable to all functional areas, and calls for discussion on implementing the QP.   It appears that the QP is a stand-alone document to be discussed in Volume I, Section 3, but submitted separately with the proposal and updated annually.



The QP is a stand-alone document to be discussed in Volume I, Section 3, but submitted separately with the proposal and updated annually.��

72.	Reference Section K.18, Page K-16.  Section K, Representations, Certifications, and Other Statements of Offerors, includes solicitation provision K.18, Estimate of Percentage of Recovered Material for Designated Items to be Used in the Performance of the Contract (52.223-8) (May 1995).  Paragraph C of the Solicitation provision provides that “estimated percentage(s) of recovered materials to be used in products and services to be provided under any resulting contract that are less than the requirements set forth in this solicitation may render a prospective offeror’s offer nonresponsive.” We have been unable to identify any requirements in the solicitation for minimum required percentage(s) of recovered materials. Does the solicitation contain any such requirements? If so, in what section?




Provision 
K.18, Estimate of Percentage of Recovered Material for Designated Items to be Used in the Performance of the Contract (52.223-8) (May 1995)
 is deleted in its entirety and remaining provisions will be renumbered accordingly
.
��

73.	RFP Section  I.1, Page I-2. Section I, Contract Clauses, contract clause I.1, Clauses Incorporated by Reference, includes FAR clause 52.228-1, Bid Guarantee.  Does the Government intend offerors to submit a bid bond with their proposals?



Bid bonds as well as performance bonds 
that meet the dollar threshold 
will be required under Section C15 on an IDIQ basis, but not with the initial proposal.��

74.	Reference RFP Section L.19, Page L-12.  Solicitation Provision L.19, Required Forms, includes SF Form 3881, Payment Information Form ACH Vendor Payment System, and DD Form 250, Material Inspection and Receiving Reports. Neither of these forms appear to be referenced in any other section of the RFP.  Please provide an explanation for the use of these forms and copies of the forms or delete the requirements for the forms.



In accordance with L.19.C, required forms are available in Part 53 of the FAR or NASA FAR Supplement.��

75.	Reference RFP Section C11.5.H., Page C11-3.  Section C11 says:  “The IWTF has the capacity to treat 50,000 gallons per day of metal finishing wastewater, and 5,000 gallons per day of paint booth and water blast wastewater. Sample collection and reporting are included with Section C6, Environmental Management Support. Historical data for operation of this facility is included in Attachment J-C6.1, Section J.”  It is not clear whether we should estimate the work based on capacity or historical data. Capacity shows 55,000 gallons a day and historical data reflects 70,000 gallons a month on average. 

	

The treatment capacity 
per day is the most water that c
ould be treated.  The historical data indicates the relationship of water that has
 actually
 been treated monthly
 and is 
probably
 the best 
indicator
 for estimating purposes. 
 
��

76.	Reference C13.5.L, Page C13-3.  Section C13 says:  “Contract Element (CLIN - 00X1.1310) Cooling Tower Water Treatment. The Contractor shall perform water treatment for the cooling towers. Water treatment equipment is shown in Attachment J-C13.2, Section J and per C13.8.Q. All PM activities shall be accomplished in compliance with the Contractor’s PM plan.”  What are the treatment standards that MSFC requires?

	

The cooling tower water treatment standards that are in place currently are:



Inhibitor concentration maintained automatically between 5 to 9 ppm organic phosphate.

Bleed off/blow down maintained at 4 to 5 cycles.

Conductivity controlled automatically to maintain 800 to 1000 micro-ohms.

Samples are tested weekly by the incumbent contractor.

Microbiological growth kept to a minimum with biocide treatment as needed.

Visual inspections performed weekly to detect slime or bacterial growth.

Monthly samples to confirm that microbiological growth is controlled to under 100,00 micro-organism per ml.

Systems descaled annually or as required.

��

77.	Reference RFP Section C13.5.P, Page C13-3.  Section C13 says:   “Contract Element (CLIN - 00X1.1313) Water Treatment for Chilled Water Systems.  The Contractor shall perform water treatment for the chilled water systems listed in Attachment J-C.16 and J-C1.18, Section J and per C13.8.Q. All PM activities shall be accomplished in compliance with the Contractor’s PM plan.”  What are the treatment standards that MSFC requires?



The chilled water systems water treatment standards that are in place currently are:



Inhibitor concentration maintained between 150 to 200 ppm molydate.

Samples tested on six month intervals (January and July).

Microbiological growth kept to a minimum with with biocide treatment as needed.

Semi-annual samples to confirm that microbiological growth is controlled to under 100,000 micro-organism per ml.

��

78.	Reference RFP Section C13.5.Q, Page C13-3.  Section C13 says:  “Contract Element (CLIN - 00X1.1314) Water Treatment and PM for Hot Water and Steam Boilers.  The Contractor shall perform water treatment PM for the hot water and steam boilers. Water treatment equipment is listed in Attachment J-C13.3, Section J, and hot water and steam boilers are included in J-C1.16 and J-C1.18, Section J and per C13.8.Q. All PM activities shall be accomplished in compliance with the Contractor’s PM plan.”  What are the treatment standards that MSFC requires?



The hot water and steam boiler water treatment standards that are in place currently are:



Hot water systems in Buildings 4708, 4816, and 4207 are drained and 

                      flushed with potable water annually.

For steam boilers, a multi-purpose boiler chemical is used.

For steam boilers, Boiler Treatment Standard Guideline by Parker Engineering Corp. is used.

The steam boilers are to comply with ASME, Section VII, Part C2-421.

For steam boilers, total dissolved solvent is 2500 to 3000 ppm, pH level is to be above 7 to 11.5, and hardness is to be 0.

��

79.	Reference Clause G.4.G. is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:



Clause G.4, List Of Available Installation-Owned Property and Services, is deleted in its entirety and replace with the following: 



“G.4	LIST OF AVAILABLE INSTALLATION-OWNED PROPERTY AND SERVICES



In accordance with this clause, the Contractor is authorized use of the types of property and services listed below, to the extent they are available, while on-site at the NASA installation.



A.  Office space, work area space, desks, file cabinets and furniture-in-place, and utilities.  The Contractor shall use Government telephones for official purposes only.  Pay telephone stations are available for the convenience and use of employees in making unofficial calls, both local and long distance.



B. General- and special-purpose equipment, including Government-provided Office furniture and furnishings, as follows:



Equipment to be made available to the Contractor for use in performance of the contract on-site and at such other locations as approved by the Contracting Officer is listed in Attachment J-C1.4, Section J.  The Government retains accountability for this property, regardless of its authorized location.  The Contractor shall replace any of the General Purpose Equipment that reaches the end of its useful life during the contract period, or which is beyond economical repair, if the equipment is still needed for contract performance.  Such replacements shall be made with Contractor-owned facilities.  Contractor acquisitions of facility items for the Government shall be prohibited, unless specifically authorized by the contract or consent has been obtained in writing from the Contracting Officer pursuant to FAR 45.302-1(a).



If the Contractor acquires property for the Government under the IDIQ portion of this contract, this property shall become accountable to the Government.  The required information for this property shall be provided to the MSFC Receiving Department for entry into the NASA Equipment Management System (NEMS).



3.  The Contractor may bring on-site for use under this contract any property owned or leased by the Contractor, without the Contracting Officer's prior written approval.  Such property will be clearly marked (visibly different from NASA markings) as contractor property.  The Contractor shall obtain MSFC Supply and Equipment Management Officer concurrence for markings before use.



C.	 Supplies from stores stock:  Not available.



D.	 Publications and blank forms stocked by the installation.



E.	 Safety and fire protection for Contractor personnel and facilities.



 Installation service facilities:  Those listed in Attachment J-C1.3, Section J.



G.  
Medical treatment of a first-aid nature for Contractor
 personnel injuries
 sustained during on-site duty, to include ambulance services;
 NASA mandated physicals under the general guidelines established by OSHA, EPA, and NRC.



H.	 Cafeteria privileges for Contractor employees during normal operating hours.



I.	 Calibration services, during normal operating hours, for use under this contract.



J.	Shipping and Receiving services, during normal operating hours, for use under this   contract.



K.	Moving and hauling for office moves shall be provided on-site, as approved by the Contracting Officer.



The Contractor may purchase fuel (unleaded gas and diesel) from the Government for Contractor provided vehicles operated in conjunction with this contract at a rate of $1.00 per gallon.  Fuel costs will be deducted from Contractor’s invoices on a monthly basis.  If the Government’s fuel costs vary by more than plus or minus 10%, rates will be adjusted for the next month following the rate change to reflect the price increase or decrease.  There will be no equitable adjustment provided for previous month’s rates.  The Contractor may continue to purchase fuel at the new rates if they so desire.



The Contractor may purchase Distributed Desktop Services (DDS) in the amount of $2,500 per existing desktop per year.  If a Contractor-determined desktop has not previously existed, then Local Area Network (LAN) connection would be an additional one-time cost of $2,000 per workstation.      Historically, MSFC has provided basic DDS services at  40  workstations.  Workstation quantities and locations:  Building 4250 - 2 workstations; Building 4244 - 16 workstations; Building 4249 - 8 workstations; Building 4650 - 4 workstations; Building 4251 - 9 workstations; and Building 4202 - 1 workstations. DDS will be deducted from Contractor’s invoices on a monthly basis.  An additional 6 workstations required for operation of the CMMS and UCS will be provided and maintained by the Government.   DDS includes:



                                  LAN Connection

                                  Office suite of applications (word processor, spreadsheet,

	                        graphics/presentation,

                                             personal calendar, WWW browser)

                                  Electronic Mail

                                   20MB storage on home server

                                   Network printing

                                   Directory services

                                   Communications package (telnet, file transfer, etc.)



                     Additional options may be purchased at the following prices:

                                   Meeting Maker ($133 per user)

                                   Remote Access ($137 per user)

                                   Disk storage (10MB minimum) ($10 per MB)

                                   Lotus Notes ($538 per user) 



If the Government’s desktop service costs vary by more than plus or minus 10% rates will be adjusted for the next year following the rate change.  There will be no equitable adjustment provided for previous year’s rates.  The Contractor may continue to purchase desktop services at the new rates if they so desire.



(End of clause)”��

80.	Will Computer Sciences Corporation provide total systems integration of the hardware and software described above or should this be priced by the COSS contractor?



MAXIMO and the associated hardware and software will be owned and maintained by the Government.   Refer to Amendment 3 question 79 for LAN services provided by the Government.��

81.	Reference Section C3.B.1.b., page C3-4, and Attachment J-C3.1-2.  This reference states MSFC is in the process of bringing MAXIMO on line.  We assume MSFC will complete the MAXIMO installation and data transfer  from the existing CMMS prior to phase-in start date, but an ambiguity seems to exist with the discussion that the Contractor shall maintain and manage the existing CMMS.  The Contractor shall provide and maintain compatible workstations for their own use.  Attachment J-C3-1-2 states MAXIMO will include an integrated package of modules.  MSFC purchased 50 user licenses.  a).  Will the Government provide a list of the specific MAXIMO modules.  b)  How many of the user licenses will the Contractor have?  c)  Which of the Government furnished facilities listed in Attachment J-C1.3 are on a LAN on the NT server supported by NASA’s Information Systems Services Office?  Does the Contractor have to install additional LAN if he organizes his offices different than the incumbent Contractor?  d)  Will the Contractor be authorized to interface or integrate his financial accounting system with MAXIMO so that timely financial cost information is available?  e)  If MAXIMO is not installed by contract start date, when should the Contractor plan to procure the workstations?  f)  Will training be provided by the Government if MAXIMO is installed after contract start date?



The Government has procured the MAXIMO Enterprise Base System.  The Government has license for 50 concurrent users.  This may be a combination of Government and Contractor personnel using MAXIMO at any one time.  Refer to question 79 for locations that have LAN access.  If an additional LAN was justified by the Contractor and agreed to by the Government, the Contractor would have to pay for the installation but the installation would be performed by the Government.  The Contractor will be authorized to interface or integrate their financial accounting system with MAXIMO to support this contract only with Government approval and using Government approved methods.  MAXIMO will not totally replace the existing CMMS at the contract start date but it will be operational for a portion of the existing CMMS functions.  The Government will not provide any MAXIMO training to the Contractor.��

82.	Will computer networking capability be provided to the contractor?  If so, what is the technical level of the network?  Will there be a seat limitation to the contractor?



Computer networking will be provided as described in Attachment J-C3.1.  The Local Area Network (LAN) is connected to a 100 megabit fiber distributed data interface file server ring.  Refer to question 79 for seat limitation.���83.	Reference J-C3.1, page J-C3.1-1 and J-C3.1-2.  The discussion on the exiting CMMS and replacement CMMS indicates there is a existing LAN.  a) Is the LAN dedicated to the CMMS?  b) What is the condition of the existing LAN, type wire, capabilities, etc.?  c)  Will the Contractor be authorized to use the same LAN for Contractor furnished software?  d) Will the Contractor have access to the LAN for Internet use?



The LAN is not dedicated to CMMS.  The NT server will be partitioned off to support CMMS.  The LAN resides in Building 4207 in the network management center connected to a 100 megabit fiber distributed data interface file server ring.  Contractor furnished software must be compatible and the Government must agree that it is to the advantage of the Government for use with this contract.  If the Contractor purchased Distributed Desktop services from the Government they will have Internet access.  This access must be for business use related to this contract only.  See Question 79.  ��

84.	Reference  Section B, Schedule of Prices for Lump Sum Work, Section C12.1, C12.5A,C,D, and Section C13.1, C13.5C and E.  In Section B, Schedule of Prices for Lump Sum Work, the CLINs 0001.1204 and 0001.1303 appear to be duplicate entries.  The Section C references appear very similar, except for the references within the section.  Please clarify.  Also, please clarify the steam boilers that are discussed in Section C12.1 and C13.1.  A search of boilers in Attachment J-C1.16 shows that all but two boilers, EE680 in Bldg 4207 and EE064 in Bldg 4200, are accounted for in Attachment J-C12.2 and C12.5A.  No other boilers are listed.  What boilers is C13.1 referring to?  This confusion continues in C12.5C and C13.5C.  Section C12.5C refers to Boiler PM to be accomplished per Attachment J-C13.2 and states these boilers are located in Bldg. 4567, 4675, and 4660.  In fact, Attachment J-C13.2 lists boilers in those buildings as well as various other buildings.  All but six of the boilers listed in Attachment J-C12.2 are listed in J-C13.3.  Is it the Government’s intent that only the boilers in buildings 4567, 4675 and 4660 be serviced under this CLIN?  Section C13.5C refers to boiler repair, PM and certification.  How is this different from what is required in Section C12.5A?



CLIN 001.1204, Boiler Feedwater Pump PM, is for pumps associated with boilers in Buildings 4567, 4675, and 4660.  CLIN 001.1303, Boiler Feedwater Pump PM, is for feedwater pumps other than those in CLIN 001.1204. 



As stated in C1.1, General, basic utilities are furnished by the Army, including maintenance of their respective distribution systems.  The MSFC interface to assume responsibility of the Army supplied utilities is normally five feet outside of a facility or at some convenient disconnect near by.  C12.1, General Requirements, addresses boilers operated by MSFC as well as all steam distribution under MSFC responsibility.  C13.1, General Requirements, and C13.5, Lump Sum Work, addresses, along with HVAC/R, boilers that are not included in C12.5, Lump Sum Work.



Attachment J-C12.2, Boiler Operation Schedule, is referred to in C12.5.A, Steam Generation.  It states the current boiler operation schedule.  Attachment J-C13.3, Boiler Preventive Maintenance, referred to in C13.1, General Requirements, refers to the current PM program.  It is understandable for boilers identified for normal operation to also be in the PM program.  Note that J-C1.16 is an equipment inventory list which would also include boilers in the PM program.



C12.5, Primary Steam Boiler PM, refers to boilers in Buildings 4567, 4675, and 4660.  These buildings are boiler houses only.  C13.5.C, Boiler PM, refers to the boilers in facilities that have functions other than generating steam or hot water.  J-C13.3, not J-C13.2, is referred to in C12.5.C because it lists current PM for all boilers. 



C12.5.C (CLIN 00X1.1203), Primary Boiler PM, refers only to the boilers in Buildings 4567, 4675, and 4660.  C13.5.C, Boiler PM, refers to boilers other than those in C12.5.C.  C12.5.A applies to steam generation.  C12.5.F, Power Boiler Annual Certification, applies to the boilers in Buildings 4567, 4675, and 4660. 

��

85.	Reference  Section C12.1, C12.5A, C13.1, and C13.5C.  What is the limit of the term “repair” as used in the referenced sections?  Under what section, ID/IQ or Lump Sum, does the Government expect to see boiler overhaul?



If  repair is associated with PM performance, refer to C1.5.D.a, Definition and Repair Limitation.  If repair is associated with operation, refer to C1.5.E, Operations, for repair limitation.  Boiler overhaul would be IDIQ work.��

86.	Reference Attachment J-C12.2.  Do the boilers listed as operating in the summer also operate in the winter?



The boilers that operate in the summer also operate in the winter.��

87.	Reference  Section C12.5A.  Line 8 in the referenced section states that the boilers the contractor shall operate include, but are not limited to, boilers listed in Attachment J-C12.2.  To what boilers does the term “not limited to” refer?  What is the associated workload data, or is this considered part of the 10% variance?



The complete statement that is referred to in C12.5.A, Steam Generation,  states, “The steam and hot water boiler equipment the Contractor shall operate includes, but is not limited to, boilers listed in Attachment J-C12.2, Section J.”  This statement is intended to refer to all equipment, including boilers, that are associated with steam and hot water generation.���88.	Reference Section C13.5Q.  Section title is “ Contract Element (CLIN - 00X1.1314) Water Treatment and PM for Hot Water and Steam Boilers.”  The body of the section says that the contractor will perform water treatment PM for hot water and steam boilers.  It also states that the water treatment equipment is listed in Attachment J-C13.3.  J-C13.3 is a list of MSFC Boilers Preventive Maintenance.  Attachment J-C13.2 is labeled “Water Treatment Equipment Inventory”, but does not list any equipment, only the location of treatment sites and a frequency.  Is this section referring to water treatment, PM of water treatment equipment, or PM of boilers?  Please clarify.



Section  C13.5.Q is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following.



       “Q.  Contract Element (CLIN - 00X1.1314) Water Treatment PM for Hot Water and Steam Boilers.   The Contractor shall perform water treatment PM for the hot water and steam boilers.  Water treatment equipment is listed in Attachment J-C13.2.  All PM activities shall be accomplished in compliance with the Contractor’s PM plan.” 



In addition, the title for CLIN 000X.1314 in Section B “Schedule of Prices for Lump Sum Work” is revised to be “Water Treatment PM for Hot Water and Steam Boilers”.



The hot water and steam boiler water treatment standards that are in place currently are:



Hot water systems in Buildings 4708, 4816, and 4207 are drained and 

                      flushed with potable water annually.

For steam boilers, a multi-purpose boiler chemical is used.

For steam boilers, Boiler Treatment Standard Guideline by Parker Engineering Corp. is used.

The steam boilers are to comply with ASME, Section VII, Part C2-421.

For steam boilers, total dissolved solvent is 2500 to 3000 ppm, pH level is to be above 7 to 11.5, and hardness is to be 0.

��

89.	Reference C12.5B. To clarify workload expectations, request the Government provide the following information:

Size of discharge pipes from the boilers listed in J-C1.16

Number and size of valves replaced in FY 96

Age, composition, and type (if any) of cathodic protection of steam and condensate pipes

How much pipe is underground, in tunnels, and aboveground

Yearly average consumption of boiler feed water

Yearly average water treatment chemical consumption, by chemical

What boilers service what buildings, and for what purpose, (personnel comfort and domestic hot water, or some production process)



See the chart below for buildings served by specific boilers, discharge pipe/valve      size, and type of boiler service.

��BOILER BUILDING�BUILDINGS SERVICED�PIPE DISCHARGE 

SIZE�BOILER USE��4660�4657, 4653, 4655, 4660, 4659, 4649, 4656�6"�COMFORT, PRODUCTION PROCESS��4567�ALL OF EAST TEST AREA�6"�COMFORT ��4675�ALL OF WEST TEST AREA�4"�COMFORT��4605�4605�2-1/2"�COMFORT, HUMIDITY CONTROL��4628�4628�2-1/2"�COMFORT��4755�4755, 4752, 4754�6"�COMFORT��4718�4718�8"�COMFORT, HUMIDITY CONTROL��4708, SOUTH�4708, SOUTH�2-1/2"�HOT WATER��4708, NORTH�4708, NORTH�2"�STEAM AND HOT WATER FOR CAFETERIA��4610�4610�2"�STEAM AND HOT WATER FOR CAFETERIA��4707�4707, 4705, 4760�6"�PRODUCTION PROCESS��4491�4491�2"�HUMIDITY CONTROL��4207�4207�3"�HOT WATER��4816�4816�2-1/2"�COMFORT HEAT��4776�4776�2-1/2”�COMFORT HEAT��

There were approximately 430 valves ranging in size from ½ to 6 inches replaced in FY96.  The steam and condensate piping does not have cathodic protection The amount of piping that is underground, in tunnels, and above ground is not known. Boiler feedwater consumption for FY96 was approximately 2.9 million gallons. Boiler water chemical used was approximately 250 gallons and salt for softeners was approximately 15,000 pounds in FY96.

��

90.	Reference C9.5.I.  To clarify workload expectations, please provide the number drainage structures that must be cleared.



There were approximately 35 drainage structures cleared in FY96.��

91.	Reference C7.5 and C7.6.  Are the reports currently automated?  If so, will this data base be turned over to the successor contractor?  Is the data base considered Government property?



The data base for the reports in C7 are Government property and will be available for the awardee’s use.��

92.	Reference C7.6E.  How many RASA utility bills must be reconciled each month? Do the RASA bills correspond to the meters that are read in section C7.5?  What is the billing cycle used by RASA?  For example, are bills for June received by 10 July, etc.?




One bill per month for each of the following:  
Natural gas, steam, industrial and potable water, and electricity utility
.
 
 
Yes, 
the RASA bills correspond to the meters that are read in section C7.5
.  The bills are normally received in the third week of the month  for the previous month.��

93.	Reference Section C2, Definitions, Section C4.2, and Attachments J-C1.17 and J-C4.1.  We have been told that the data contained in Attachment J-C4.2 includes all trouble call data, and only trouble call data, for FY96.  A trouble call is limited (by definitions in C2 and C4.2) to a total of $2000 in labor and material.  Attachment J-C4.1 shows several individual trouble calls, (E46030, I46025, L40168, B56011, CC56036, C56037, E50667, E56015, G50898, G56024, H50750, I51110, J51099, J56007, A60117, J57041, etc. as examples of many others) that exceed the $2000 trouble call limit.  How do these individual trouble calls factor into the workload data provided in J-C1.17 on the number of trouble calls, hours spent and the cost of materials?



Attachment J-C4.2 is a sample TC form.  Attachment J-C4.1, Fiscal Year 1996 Maintenance Charges, has the explanation on page J-C4.1-1 stating that this is a mixture of work for Fiscal 1996.  
J-C1.17 is a three year average for TCs.
�
�

94.	Reference Section C13.5R and J-C13.1.  To more accurately determine workload, please tell us how many users of CFC 11 and  12 and R refrigerants and their capacity remain on MSFC?  What is the timeline for conversion or replacement?





The remaining capacity of various refrigerants and use locations is as follows:
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There is no timeline for conversion or replacement.

��

95.	Reference Section C2, C4.2C.1, and Attachment J-C1.8.  Referenced sections define a stringent requirement to respond to, and repair, critical system deficiencies.  These deficiencies can occur in virtually any system that is under this contract.  Workload data associated with this requirement is not clear.  Can the government provide the number and nature of calls that would be covered under this system?  Also, in order to meet the repair timelines, especially for Repair Codes 1 thru 4, a robust supply of spare parts must also be available.  Will the government provide us with an inventory of critical spares and a demand history? 



The availability requirements and response times 
were not contractually required under the present contract and therefore this information 
is not available.  Critical spares are addressed in question 79.  The Government does not 
have visibility into the demand history since present contractor is not required to report
 this information.
�
��96.	Reference Sections C2, C14.5C and C14.5H.  Section C14.5C requires the contractor to cost PM on switch gear.  Section J-C1.16 lists an item described as switchgear, but does not provide any size or other descriptive data.  Section J-C1.16 also lists numerous other electrical items that can be considered part of a switch gear.  Section J-C1.18 does not list PM on a switch gear, but does show PM on a substation.  Will the government clarify what items thay expect to have PM performed on under Section C14.5C?  Also, section C14.5H requires PM on all low and medium voltage power distribution system.  Section C2 defines low voltage as anything up to 600V and high voltage as anything over 600V.  What then is medium voltage and where is the listing and description of the low  and medium voltage systems?



Attachment J-C1.18 identifies the existing PM program.  For C14.5.C, the government is identifying switchgear to be included in the PM program.    Attachment J-C1.16, Facility Equipment Listing, includes equipment that is not in the PM program.  The title of C14.5.H is changed to “Interior and Exterior Low and High Voltage Distribution System PM.”��

97.	Reference the ID/IQ Section of each SOW.  Each SOW section contains a subsection titled IDIQ Work.  Under that section is usually listed items that may be ordered as IDIQ.  This listing is not all inclusive of the items that might be needed to do maintenance and repair under the SOW.  For example, the listing in SOW C12, Steam Generation, does not list any repair on the boilers.  The IDIQ section in SOW C10 only lists roofs, pest control and signs.  How will other repairs and maintenance be obtained? 



The IDIQ portion of each SOW is intended to identify probable IDIQ work.  All work that is not Lump Sum will be IDIQ.��

98.	`Section C6.1.A indicates that the contractor is responsible for disposing and/or treating hazardous waste.  Various subparagraphs of C6.2.A and C6.8.C indicate hazardous waste is disposed of at commercial TSDR facilities using commercial waste haulers to transport it.  Who pays for the waste haule
rs and the TSDR facility charge
s? 



The COSS Contractor pays for the waste haule
rs and the TSDR facility charge
s.��

99.	Section E.2.E specifies that “The Contractor shall promptly furnish, at no increase in contract price, all facilities, labor and material reasonably needed for performing such safe and convenient inspections and tests as may be required by the Contracting Officer.”  What are the numbers and types of inspections and tests that may be required, including associated facilities, labor and material that may be required? 



Generally, the Contractor shall provide ready access for government inspections, and no other specific facilities, labor, or material are normally required.  Specific tests to be performed by the Contractor are specified on the drawings or included in the specifications.��

100.	Reference C14.5B and C14.8 and Attachment J-C14.1.  C14.5B requires fixed and mobile emergency generator PM to be conducted.  None of the other references provide a frequency of this PM.  Attachment J-C14.1 provides the number of hours for full load run, but no frequency.  Also the number of full load run hours varies from 0 to 400 with no discernible pattern or rational.  What is the frequency that the government wants for generator PM?  Are the hours provided the required run hours?  If so, what standard does the government want us to apply to those with no hours listed?



PM for generators is listed in Attachment J-C1.18.  The full load run hours listed in Attachment J-C14.1 is information to be used to determine refueling intervals.��

101.	Reference J-C1.22 and J-C15.1.  Are the costs shown in the two attachments discrete to those categories or are the same costs listed in each attachment? 



The two attachments are discrete to those categories.  They are listed separately because in the past all Service Requests (Attachment J-C1.22) were performed by Maintenance under SCA because the new work was less than $2000.  However, under the new COSS contract, new construction less than $2000 will generally be ordered through C15 as IDIQ under DBA.  Other Service Requests (non-construction, such as repair of non-collateral equipment) will be issued as IDIQ under Section C1.6.  See Section C1.6 for additional information.��

102.	 Amendment 1, question 33, incorrectly deleted the fourth paragraph of L.22.B.1.  



Provision L.22.B.1. fifth paragraph is deleted in its entirety and replace with the following:



     “Offerors shall discuss proposed small, small disadvantaged, and woman-owned small business participation in comparison with the goals stated in Section L.20, and the methods for achieving these goals.  The offeror shall clearly identify the types and amounts of work proposed to be performed by small, small disadvantaged, and woman-owned small business concerns, emphasizing utilization of any high-technology efforts.  ��

103.	The Government’s PM program for electrical equipment does not seem to be as thorough at the PM program for mechanical equipment.  Should the Contractor anticipate expanding the electrical PM?



The Government expects the awardee to address all equipment for potential consideration in recurring  maintenance.  The current program for electrical equipment has not had the same evaluation as the mechanical program.���104.	Reference C11.5E.  Heavy Equipment Operation - This is included as a lump sum item, however there is no schedule indicating the level of effort expected of the Contractor.  How many operator hours are estimated as being required for each type of heavy equipment?  Does each equipment operation (including the special transport truck) require a team of individuals (i.e., driver, operator, rigger, spotters etc.) or can  all functions be performed by the driver/operator? What’s the frequency of use of each equipment? Any special licensing or certification required ? (Paragraph refers to certification for special transport truck, but no other equipment.)



Historically, t
his effort has been performed by 
10 equipment operators
, full time.
 
 
This included program critical hardware support. The Contractor will be expected to determine the number of support personnel required for moves based on case by cased conditions. Licensing and certification requirements for heavy equipment operations, including program critical hardware moves, was identified in MMI 1710.6, MSFC Program for Personnel Certification, and is identified in NSS/GO-1740.9B, Safety Standard for Lifting Devices and Equipment.  As a part of MSFC reviewing its procedure requirements, MMI 1710.6 was deleted and it is to be replaced with MMG 1700.1, MSFC Industrial Safety Procedures and Guidelines.  MMG 1700.1 is in draft at this time but is anticipated to be in affect by November 1, 1997.  Until the MMG is issued the Safety and Mission Assurance Office has issued a letter stating to continue to comply with MMI 1710.6.  MMI1710.6 and NSS/GO-1740.9B may be reviewed at Building 4491, MSFC Repository.��

105.	Reference C11.5F.  Program Critical Hardware Support - Same as C11.5E.  If the number of Program Critical Hardware moves cannot be estimated accurately, this may be an IDIQ candidate.



Refer to question 104 for operator information and certification.
  
 
P
rogram critical hardware support 
remains
 lump sum work.��

106.	Reference C11.5.I.  Operate Ground Water Treatment System - Lump sum item, however the estimated level of effort is not indicated.  For example, will the operation require an operator/watch stander around the clock? Does the operator take and analyze samples? Has the new equipment identified in Attachment J-C6.1 been added to the PM/PT&I scheduling yet?



The ground water treatment system will operate automatically and should need operator support approximately once per week.  Samples will be taken and analyzed in accordance with C6, Environmental Management Supp
ort, as stated in C11.5.I.  
N
ew equipment will be evaluated for inclusion in the PM program 
in accordance with C1.5.D. Re
curring Services.
 
���107.	Reference C12.5A.  Steam Generation - Good backup information on boilers and the fact that they operate around the clock, but is there a 24 operator/watchstander requirement for each location, or are there remote alarms/ UCS which preclude 24 hour/7 day watching?



Some operational support is required 24 hours a day because some boilers are in continuous operation.  The facilities where boilers have some UCS alarms are 4567, 4605, 4610, 4628, 4675, 4707, 4708, 4718, 4755, and 4816.��

108.	Reference C13.8.S.  Insulation Thickness (Page C13-8) - Correct the insulation thickness listed for 2.5 - 5 inch pipe... believe it should be 0.75.



For C13.8.S, Pipe Insulation, correct the thickness for chilled water and refrigerant piping that is 2.5 inches through 5 inches to 0.75 inches.��

109.	Reference C14.5G.  Special Electrical Systems Operation - “Contractor shall operate, repair, maintain, inspect and modify...”  As a lump sum item, one doesn’t know the expected level of effort; does the operation require a 24hr continuous operational watch? Please provide historical information that indicates annual labor and material requirements used in repairing, maintaining and modifying these systems.



The special electrical power systems do not require 24 hour continuous operational watch at this time. 
 Historically, 
w
ork typically consists of replacing batteries and power supplies and cleaning contacts.
 
 
The Government does not 
have vi
sibility into the special electrical systems operation
 since present contractor is not required to report
 this information
��

110.	Reference C15.1.  Construction Services General Requirements - Attachment J-C15.1 is an historical summary of construction activities at MSFC.  Was all of this work performed by the COSS Contractor, or were some of these items done by others?  What was the scope of involvement of the COSS Contractor... engineering? construction? inspection only? It appears from the context that the COSS Contractor did all of the construction work listed.



All work listed in J-C15.1 was managed and constructed by the COSS (formerly BMMS) Contractor.  Design and government inspection were provided by the government or through other contractors.��

111.	Reference C16.1.  Emergency Management Support General Requirements - Please verify the level of effort.  From the context it appears that one individual is required during the normal work day, and even though the position is to support an emergency center, that 24 hour, 7 day support normally is not required. Also, do the other trained individuals fill in during absences of the one assigned COSS person, or for others who work with him?  In the latter case, bidders will need to know the number of hours in addition to the one man-year indicated that were used in support of the Center.



The Emergency Operations Center (EOC) is normally only open 
during core working hours.  For
 non core hour emergencies the EOC may be activated by the Emergency Management Director (EMD).  In addition, if an emergency situation has developed and the EOC has been activated during core working hours, and the situation spans into non-core hours, the EOC will remain active until closed by the EMD.  This may require period’s of overtime; however, these situations are relatively infrequent.��

112.	Reference E.4.  Contractor’s Failure to Perform Lump Sum Work - Recommend that liquidated damages be assessed for non-performed and unsatisfactory work by the Contractor not corrected by the Government.  As this section is written, the only incentive  for the Contractor to do a specific work is the possibility of exceeding  the MADR (repeatedly, leading to possible termination).  If the Contractor does not perform the work and does not get caught, he still gets paid for the work he didn’t do.  If he does get caught and does not correct the deficiency, he simply does not get paid for the work he didn’t do anyway - still no loss. (The third situation of the Government doing the work and assessing a 20% penalty is possible, but unlikely in that the Gov’t normally doesn’t have the assets readily available.)  Moral principles aside, there is little or no risk in not doing the job the first time and doing it satisfactorily. Recommend that all work not in compliance with the contract requirements, not performed, or unsatisfactorily performed be subjected to payment deductions plus a 10% administrative cost (liquidated damages) unless it is reperformed or completed by the Government (at a 20% surcharge).  Also,  Attachment J-C1.8 assesses a $10,000 fee if minimum system availability requirements are not met.  Although this penalty is addressed in a following comment, if the penalty is used it should be identified in and correlated with this Consequences of Contractor’s Failure to Perform paragraph in Section E.




T
he Government is fully protected by Clause E.4 and E.5 in that potentially the Contractor 
not only does not get paid for nonperformance of subject work but will be charged for the 
work plus an additional twenty percent (20%) administrativ
e fee plus any other remedies available to the Government.





T
he same paragraph set forth in 
 E.10.D. 
will be included as a new paragraph in E.4.G.



���113.	Reference PRS (start page E-11) - Several items indicate a MADR of 0%.  Though the criticality of these items is understood, a 0% MADR requires an absolute flawless QC effort and otherwise could result in contract termination;  even a 1/2% or 1% MADR would appear more reasonable. The MADR is not the acceptable/unacceptable deficiency threshold.



MSFC has reviewed all items with a MADR of 0% and has determined the percentages to accurately reflect MSFC’s requirements.��

114.	Attachment J-C1.4  SPECIAL PURPOSE EQUIPMENT, is revised as follows.



Attachment J-C1.4  SPECIAL PURPOSE EQUIPMENT, is revised to add the following pieces of 

equipment.



                                                                                                                                    EQUIP.        EQUIP.

“ECN           ITEM NAME                    MANUFACTURER NAME                   BLDG          ROOM          COST ($)



729809                Forklift                                   Pettibone                                        HWSF                                5,204

1281576              2440 Rolloff Box                   Galbreath                                        HWSF                                3,370

1281577              2440 Rolloff Box                   Galbreath                                        HWSF                                3,370

1281586              2440 Rolloff Box                   Galbreath                                        HWSF                                3,370

                            3040 Rolloff Box                   Modern Manufacturing                HWSF                           7,500”



��

115.	Reference C1.1.  Suggest changing the last sentence in first paragraph to read “Functions shall be performed by skilled craftsmen/technicians in accordance with this contract.”  



Change the last sentence in C1.1, General, to state, “Functions shall be performed by skilled craftsmen/technicians in accordance with this contract.”��

116.	Reference C1.2D.  Configuration changes should be defined so the contractor will know when to obtain Government approval. 



Add the following sentence to C1.2.D: “Configuration control includes any change which affects form, fit, or function of the existing system or system component.”��

117.	Reference C1.2K.  The experience requirements specified in this clause should be carefully reviewed because over specifying can needlessly increase cost of the contract.   



The Government believes that the experience requirements in C1.2.K, Contractor Licensing, Certification, and Specific Experience Requirements, is correct.���118.	Reference Clause E.10, pages E-11 through E-24, Performance Requirements Summary, are deleted in their entirety to revise the title of CLINs 00X1.0304, 00X1.1301, and 00X1.1314.



Clause E.10, pages E-11 through E-24, Performance Requirements Summary, are deleted in their entirety to revise the title of CLINs 00X1.0304, 00X1.1301, and 00X1.1314 and to revise CLIN 00X1.1602 MADR and is attached to this modification as a separate Internet file.��

119.	L.1.B. is revised to delete 1852.246-74 Requirement For Quality and Productivity Improvement Plan (Jun 1990).



L.1.B. is revised to delete 1852.246-74 Requirement For Quality and Productivity Improvement Plan (Jun 1990).��

120.	Attachment J-C1.9, Section J, FWR and DO (Samples), page J-C1.9-1, FWR Sample only, is deleted in it’s entirety and replaced with the following:



� EMBED Word.Picture.6  ����



“FACILITIES OFFICE 

MARSHALL SPACE FLIGHT CENTER

WORK REQUEST FORM�

       FWR #: 

    _ _ _ _ _-_ _



��INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THIS FORM ARE ATTACHED��1.  INITIATOR  (OFFICE SYMBOL/NAME):

�2.  INITIATOR’S PHONE  NO:�3.  INITIATION DATE:

�4.  NEED DATE:

��5.  BUILDING(S)�6.  ROOM(S)/OTHER:

�7.  EQUIPMENT ID # (IF KNOWN)

�8.         ATTACHMENT? 

              YES  /  NO ��9.  DESCRIPTION OF WORK:

��10.  JUSTIFICATION:��11.  FOR INFORMATION CONTACT (OFFICE SYMBOL/NAME):



�INITIATOR’S 24 DIGIT ACCOUNTING FUND CODE: �PHONE  NO:�BLDG:



�ROOM:



����RESOURCE ANALYST FUNDING INFORMATION

��12.  24 DIGIT  ACCOUNTING  AND  APPROPRIATION  FUND  CODE

�13.  RESOURCE OFFICE VERIFICATION:

       Name:                                                                                                                            Date:

�� TO BE COMPLETED BY FACILITIES OFFICE��14.  PROJ MGR/RESIDENT MGR/PHONE NO/DATE�15.  FACILITIES REVIEW/DATE��16. SAFETY OFFICE/DATE�17.  MEDICAL CENTER/DATE�18.  SECURITY OFFICE/DATE�19.  OPER & MAINT/DATE��20.  ENGINEERING/DATE�21. CONSTRUCTION/DATE�22.  ENVIRONMENTAL OFFICE/DATE�23.  OTHER/DATE������24.            APPROVED             

                 DISAPPROVED�25.  SIGNATURE OF APPROVING OFFICIAL:�26.  DATE:��27.  REASON FOR  DISAPPROVAL:”��

�

“Facilities Work Request Form A�� TO BE COMPLETED BY CONTRACTOR ��

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL:                            FWR  #   __ __ __ __ __  -  __ __        Modification  __

��1.  PROPOSAL PREPARED BY (NAME):

�2.  PREPARER’S PHONE NO:�3.  PROPOSAL DUE  DATE:  (IAW CONTRACT SECTION C1.6.B.3.)  

������4.                                                                                                  

                PREPRICED WORK                                                    FIXED LABOR RATES

                 UNIT PRICE BOOK                                                   SUBCONTRACTED SERVICES

��5.  PROPOSED PROJECT SCHEDULE:

















��6.  PROPOSAL APPROVED BY (NAME):

�7.  APPROVAL DATE:�8.  APPROVER’S PHONE NO:  

�� TO BE COMPLETED BY FACILITIES OFFICE  ��                                                                                    

 PROPOSAL AUTHORIZATION:        

���� 9.            PROPOSAL APPROVED                                                            PROPOSAL APPROVED WITH THE FOLLOWING CHANGES

��10.  FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT  (OFFICE SYMBOL/NAME):



�11.  PHONE NUMBER: 

��

��12.   LIMITATION OF FUNDS CLAUSE BLANKET DELIVERY ORDER NUMBER:

�13.   BLANKET DELIVERY ORDER FUNDING AVAILABLE  BEFORE THIS FWR:

$��14.  PROJ MGR/RESIDENT MGR/PHONE NO/DATE�15.  FACILITIES REVIEW/DATE������16.            APPROVED             

                 DISAPPROVED�17.  SIGNATURE OF APPROVING OFFICIAL:�18.  DATE:��19.  REASON FOR DISAPPROVAL “:��



121.	Attachment J-C4.2, Section J, MSFC Trouble Desk Forms (Sample), is deleted in it’s entirety and replaced with the following







“FACILITIES WORK ORDER





WORK ORDER NO. _________________		TYPE OF WORK: _____________________	PRIORITY CODE: ____				



REQUESTOR: ______________________		REQUEST DATE/TIME: _______________	PHONE: _____________





BUILDING: ________________________		LOCATION: ____________________________________________________





EQUIPMENT: ______________________		LOCATION: ____________________________________________________





DESCRIPTION OF WORK: __________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________





WORK PERFORMED:  _____________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________



START								COMPLETION

DATE: ___/___/___	TIME: ___:___				DATE: ___/___/___	TIME: ___:___



�

LABOR								SUPPORTING OUTAGE:  Y    N



HOURS: _________	CRAFT CODE: _________	NAME: _________________________________________________

HOURS: _________	CRAFT CODE:	_________	NAME: _________________________________________________

HOURS: _________	CRAFT CODE:	_________	NAME: _________________________________________________

HOURS: _________	CRAFT CODE:	________��_	NAME: _________________________________________________



�

MATERIALS ONLY						MATERIAL COSTS



___________________________________________________	__________________

___________________________________________________	__________________				

___________________________________________________	__________________

___________________________________________________	__________________

___________________________________________________	__________________

___________________________________________________	__________________





ADDITIONAL WORK REQUIRED:  __________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________



REQUESTOR SIGNATURE: _________________________________________		         COPY FURNISHED/LEFT



QUESTIONS?        CALL 4-3919          PLEASE REFERENCE WORK ORDER NO.:  ________________”





122.	Reference C1.6.A Indefinite Delivery Indefinite Quantity Work, third paragraph is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:



“The requirement for IDIQ work may be initiated by either the Contractor or the Government, but work shall not begin without an approved FWR or DO.  The FWR or DO "package", which may include design details, sketches, or additional specification sheets, will clearly identify the scope and location of desired work.  The Contractor shall include the planning, estimating, and scheduling efforts of IDIQ work as part of the unit prices.  
Approximately ninety
 percent (90%) of all IDIQ work
 shall
 be performed during core working hours.
  The Contractor will be paid a firm fixed price (FFP) amount for each FWR or DO issued following final completion and acceptance of work.”��
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